
 

Regular Meeting of the Breckenridge City Commission June 06, 2023 Page 1 of 3 

 

NOTICE OF THE CITY OF BRECKENRIDGE  

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BRECKENRIDGE CITY 
COMMISSION 

 

June 06, 2023 at 5:30 PM  

  

AGENDA 
 

Notice is hereby given as required by Title 5, Chapter 551.041 of the Government Code that the City Commission 
will meet in a Regular Meeting of the Breckenridge City Commission on June 06, 2023 at 5:30 PM at the 
Breckenridge City Offices, 105 N. Rose Avenue, Breckenridge, Texas. 

CALL TO ORDER 

INVOCATION Led by Trey McDuff of New Destination Church.   

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

American Flag 

OPEN FORUM 

This is an opportunity for the public to address the City Commission on any matter of public business, 
except public hearings. Comments related to public hearings will be heard when the specific hearing 
begins. 

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
(Mayoral proclamations, presentations of awards and certificates, and other acknowledgements of 
significant accomplishments or service to the community.) 

1. Administration of Statement of Elected Officer, Oath of Office, and Issuance of Certificate 
of Election for City Commissioner Places 3 and 4.  

STAFF REPORT 
(Staff Reports are for discussion only. No action may be taken on items listed under this portion of the 
agenda, other than to provide general direction to staff or to direct staff to place such items of a future 
agenda for action.) 

City Manager 

2. City Business 

3. Upcoming Events 

    June 15          Bulk pickup  

1



 

Regular Meeting of the Breckenridge City Commission June 06, 2023 Page 2 of 3 

    July 1              Boomfest  

    July 4              City office Closed for Independence Day                

Chamber of Commerce 

4. Presentation by Yuri Huntington Executive Director of the Breckenridge Chamber of 
Commerce   

CONSENT AGENDA 
Any commission member may request an item on the Consent Agenda to be taken up for individual 
consideration. 

5. Consider approval of the May 2, 2023 Regular Commission Meeting minutes as recorded. 

6. Consider approval of the May 16, 2023 Special Commission Meeting minutes as recorded. 

7. Consider approval of the  Chamber of Commerce Quarterly Report 

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 

8. Public Hearing regarding whether the buildings on the following properties are dangerous 
buildings pursuant to Chapter 5, Article 1 of the Breckenridge Code of Ordinances 
115 S. Parks 
907 N. Shelton 
513 S. Stoker 
919 N. Breckenridge Ave. 
110 W 3rd 
109 W. 7th 
1303 W 1st 

ACTION ITEMS 

9. Discussion and any necessary action regarding whether the buildings on the seven 
properties are dangerous buildings pursuant to Chapter 5, Article I of the Breckenridge 
Code of Ordinances and, if so, discussion and any necessary action regarding issuing orders 
to abate the dangerous buildings or accepting conveyance of property (ies) from owners  

10. Discussion and any necessary action regarding allowing a Mobile Food Unit to conduct 
business on City Property. 

11. Discussion and any necessary action regarding adoption of Final Strategic Plan; including 
Vision, Mission, Core Values, Goals and Objectives.  

12. Discussion and any necessary action regarding Resolution 2023 –14 Directing Publication of 
Notice of Intention to issue Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation of the 
City of Breckenridge; and resolving other matters related to the subject 

2



 

Regular Meeting of the Breckenridge City Commission June 06, 2023 Page 3 of 3 

13. Discussion and any necessary action regarding Ordinance No. 23-09, an ordinance of the 
City of Breckenridge, Texas, amending Appendix A, “Fee Schedule”, “Sewer Service 
Charges” of the Breckenridge Code of Ordinances to increase the base monthly rate; 
Providing Repealer and Severability Clauses; and Providing and Effective Date. (Second 
Reading) 

14. Discussion and any necessary action regarding Resolution 2023-13 appointing a 
commissioner to serve as Mayor Pro-Tem 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Pursuant to Texas Government Code, Annotated, Chapter 551, Subchapter D, Texas Open Meetings Act 
(the "Act"), City Commission will recess into Executive Session (closed meeting) to discuss the following: 

Real Property 
§551.072: Deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property: 

15. American Legion 

RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 
In accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551, the City Commission will reconvene into Open 
Session and consider action, if any, on matters discussed in Executive Session. 

RECEIVE REQUESTS FROM COMMISSION MEMBERS/STAFF FOR ITEMS TO BE PLACED ON NEXT 
MEETING AGENDA 
Discussion under this section must be limited to whether or not the Commission wishes to include a 
potential item on a future agenda. 

ADJOURN 

NOTE: As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code (Consultation with City 
Attorney), this meeting may be convened into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking 
confidential legal advice from the City Attorney on any agenda item herein. 

CERTIFICATION 
I hereby certify that the above notice was posted in the bulletin board at Breckenridge City Hall, 105 
North Rose Avenue, Breckenridge, Texas, by 5:00 PM on the 3rd day of JUNE 2023. 

 

   

 City Secretary  
 

 

Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this public meeting and who may need auxiliary aid 
or services are requested to contact the Breckenridge City Hall 48 hours in advance, at 254-559-
8287, and reasonable accommodations will be made for assistance. 

 

3



0

 

BRECKENRIDGE CITY COMMISSION 
AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 

 

Subject: Administration of Statement of Elected Officer, Oath of Office, and 
Issuance of Certificate of Election for City Commissioner Places 3 and 4.  

Department: Administration 

Staff Contact: Jessica Sutter 

Title: City Secretary 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
On May 6, 2023, the City of Breckenridge held a General Election. The results of this election 
were canvassed on May 16, 2023. Vince Moore, who ran unopposed, was declared the winner 
at the canvassing of the election and will be sworn in as Commissioner Place 3 to complete a 
two-year term.  
 
Two candidates ran for Commission Place 4, Incumbent Gary Mercer received 118 votes, and 
candidate Scott Ensey received 111. During the canvassing of the election Gary Mercer was 
declared the winner with a majority of the votes and shall be sworn in as Commissioner for 
Place 4 to complete a two-year term. 
 
Commissioners will complete their Statement of Elected Officer, Oath of Office and receive a 
Certificate of Election.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
None 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
None 
 
 
 

4

Item 1.



City Of 
Breckenridge

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS

APRIL 2023

105 N. Rose Ave.
Breckenridge, TX 76424

254.559.8287
www.breckenridgetx.gov 5

Item 2.



Finance
Bank 

Statement 
Balances 

6

Item 2.



Fiscal Year Sales Tax Revenue Received 

7

Item 2.



8

Item 2.



BUILDING & DEVELOPMENT

9

Item 2.



CODE ENFORCEMENT

10

Item 2.



CODE ENFORCEMENT

11

Item 2.



12

Item 2.



13

Item 2.



14

Item 2.



ANIMAL
CONTROL

TOTAL CALLS 
FOR SERVICE

81

15

Item 2.



ANIMAL
CONTROL

16

Item 2.



17

Item 2.



18

Item 2.



19

Item 2.



PARKS & CEMETERY 

20

Item 2.



ACTIVITY
Getting the swimming Pool ready for the 2023 

season

Took the Pool tarp off-will need to be replaced 
before next Winter. 

Waiting on the new pool filter 

Mowing and weed-eating all parks

Taking applications for Managers and Lifeguards 

Preparing park for Frontier Days 

Working on the budget numbers for 2023/2024

The spray contractor for the creek is coming soon

21

Item 2.



ACTIVITY
Marked graves for headstones

Level military stones

Filling low graves

Mowing and weed eating

Located graves for visitors

Still looking for a part-time groundskeeper.

22

Item 2.



City 
Hotel/Motel TOTAL

Income

   45000 Interest Income 0.00  

      45040 CD Interest (BIB) #51794 37.20  

   Total 45000 Interest Income $           0.00  $         37.20  

   46400 Other Types of Income 0.00  

      46430 Miscellaneous Revenue 625.95  

   Total 46400 Other Types of Income $           0.00  $       625.95  

   47000 Quarterly Sales Tax 0.00  

      47010 City Quarterly Sales Tax 11,507.03  11,507.03  

   Total 47000 Quarterly Sales Tax $  11,507.03  $  11,507.03  

   47200 Program Income 0.00  

      47230 Membership Dues 12,988.07  

      47300 EDC Contact Income 7,358.67  

   Total 47200 Program Income $           0.00  $  20,346.74  

   49000 Special Events Income 0.00  

      49040 Frontier Days 0.00  

         49041 Vendor Booth 410.00  

         49049.2 Top Sponsor - Frontier Days 1,500.00  

         49049.3 Supporting Sponsor - Frontier 3,000.00  

         49049.4 Helping Sponsor - Frontier 1,650.00  

      Total 49040 Frontier Days $           0.00  $    6,560.00  

   Total 49000 Special Events Income $           0.00  $    6,560.00  

   49900 Uncategorized Income 10,692.37  

   Unapplied Cash Payment Income 528.26  

Total Income $  11,507.03  $  50,297.55  

Gross Profit $  11,507.03  $  50,297.55  

Expenses

   62100 Outside Fees/Services 0.00  

      62110 Accounting Fees 737.50  

   Total 62100 Outside Fees/Services $           0.00  $       737.50  

   62800 Facilities and Equipment 0.00  

      62860 Copier Lease 794.15  1,579.90  

   Total 62800 Facilities and Equipment $       794.15  $    1,579.90  

   62830 Liability Insurance 0.00  

      62830.2 General Liability Insurance 1,575.00  

   Total 62830 Liability Insurance $           0.00  $    1,575.00  

   63000 Events/Development Expense 0.00  

      63030 Frontier Days 1,440.00  1,440.00  

         63032 Entertainment Expenses 1,256.32  1,256.32  

         63036 Materials/Supplies Expense 73.26  

         63039.1 Advertising 315.00  315.00  

      Total 63030 Frontier Days $    3,011.32  $    3,084.58  

      63040 Car Show 0.00  

         63042 Postage 378.00  

      Total 63040 Car Show $           0.00  $       378.00  

BRECKENRIDGE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
Profit and Loss by Class

January - March, 2023

23

Item 4.



      63090 Membership Communications 33.25  

         63090.1 63090.1 Membership Appreciation 81.81  

      Total 63090 Membership Communications $           0.00  $       115.06  

      63100 Membership Dev. & Plaques 1,680.00  

      63120 Board of Directors 699.71  

      63140 Additional Events 0.00  

         63143 Livestock Show 291.32  

      Total 63140 Additional Events $           0.00  $       291.32  

      63400 Spring Fling 20.14  

   Total 63000 Events/Development Expense $    3,011.32  $    6,268.81  

   64000 Promotional Use 651.00  

   65000 Operations 107.33  

      65020 Postage 405.40  823.95  

      65040 Supplies 528.04  

         65040.5 Chamber Website 105.14  

         65040.6 Water Container 8.00  106.46  

      Total 65040 Supplies $           8.00  $       739.64  

      65050 Telephone/Fax 491.04  

      65060 Memberships (TCCE/USCC) 185.00  

      65061 Membership (TMCN) 15.00  

      65080 Utilities Expense 0.00  

         65080.1 Electric 37.99  37.99  

      Total 65080 Utilities Expense $         37.99  $         37.99  

      65190 Credit Card Fees 11.65  

   Total 65000 Operations $       451.39  $    2,411.60  

   65025 Technology 129.88  

      65025.2 ChamberMaster 814.20  

      65025.3 Website 455.15  

   Total 65025 Technology $           0.00  $    1,399.23  

   65100 Miscellaneous Expense 40.92  

      65110 Storage Building 1,110.48  

      65120 Contract Labor Exepense 67.50  

      65160 Other Expenses (Miscellaneous) 13.53  

   Total 65100 Miscellaneous Expense $           0.00  $    1,232.43  

   66000 Admin/Payroll/Tax Expenses 1,482.20  

      66010 Administrative Salaries 17,794.64  

      66050 Mileage/Reimbursements 30.65  

   Total 66000 Admin/Payroll/Tax Expenses $           0.00  $  19,307.49  

Total Expenses $    4,256.86  $  35,162.96  

Net Operating Income $    7,250.17  $  15,134.59  

Net Income $    7,250.17  $  15,134.59  

Thursday, Jun 01, 2023 02:46:11 PM GMT-7 - Cash Basis

24

Item 4.



 

BRECKENRIDGE CITY COMMISSION 
AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 

 

Subject: Consider approval of the May 2, 2023 Regular Commission Meeting 
minutes as recorded. 

Department: Administration 

Staff Contact: Jessica Sutter  

Title: City Secretary  

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
Meeting minutes for the Regular Commission meeting May 2, 2023.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
If applicable, enter financial impact. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Move to approve as presented .  
 
 
 

25

Item 5.



 

 

Regular Meeting of the Breckenridge City Commission May 2, 2023  1 of 5 

May 2, 2023 

REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION MEETING OF THE TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE, TEXAS, HELD ON THIS 
DATE WITH THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS PRESENT. 

 
PRESENT 
MAYOR         BOB SIMS  
COMMISSIONER, PLACE 1      BLAKE HAMILTON 
MAYOR PRO TEM, PLACE 2       ROB DURHAM 
COMMISSIONER, PLACE 3      VINCE MOORE 
COMMISSIONER, PLACE 4       GARY MERCER  
 
CITY MANAGER        CYNTHIA NORTHROP 
CITY SECRETARY         JESSICA SUTTER 
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR      TODD HENDERSON 
FINANCE DIRECTOR       DIANE LATHAM 
PUBLIC SERVICES DIRECTOR      STACY HARRISON 
FIRE CHIEF         MALCOLM BUFKIN 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor called the meeting to order at 5:31 p.m. 
 
Invocation led by Sam Chambers of First Methodist Church. 
 
OPEN FORUM 
This is an opportunity for the public to address the City Commission on any matter of public business, 
except public hearings. Comments related to public hearings will be heard when the specific hearing 
begins. 
 
No speakers. 

STAFF REPORT 
(Staff Reports are for discussion only. No action may be taken on items listed under this portion of the 
agenda, other than to provide general direction to staff or to direct staff to place such items of a future 
agenda for action.) 

City Manager 

2. City Business 

3. Upcoming Events 

    April 30-May 6      Municipal Clerks Week 

    May 4                   International Firefighters Day   

26

Item 5.



 

 

Regular Meeting of the Breckenridge City Commission May 2, 2023  2 of 5 

    May 5-6                Frontier Days 

    May 5-7               Stephens County Arena Ranch Rodeo 

    May 6                  Stephens County Airport fly-in and Car show 

    May 6                  Election Day 

    May 8-9               Shattered Dreams Program  

    May 16                 Battle of the Badges Blood Drive  

    May 16                 Special Meeting-Final Canvass of Election 

    May 18                 Bulk Pickup 

    May 14-20            National Police Week  

    May 20                 Rodney Hartfield Benefit Cornhole Tournament   

    May 21-27           National Public Works Week 

Police Chief 

4. Shattered Dreams-Noah Gray  

No Action Taken.  

CONSENT AGENDA 
Any commission member may request an item on the Consent Agenda to be taken up for individual 
consideration. 

5. Consider approval of the April 11, 2023 Regular Commission Meeting minutes as recorded. 

6. Consider approval of the  FY 2023-2024 Annual Audit Engagement Letter with George, 
Morgan & Sneed, P.C. 

7. Discussion and any necessary action regarding approving the second reading of the 
resolution authorizing Breckenridge Economic Development Corporation’s amended 
project/lease with RGN. 

Commissioner Moore made a motion to approve consent agenda items 5-7 as presented.  
Commissioner Mercer seconded the motion. The motion passed 5-0 

 

 

 

27

Item 5.



 

 

Regular Meeting of the Breckenridge City Commission May 2, 2023  3 of 5 

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 

8. Public Hearing regarding Breckenridge Economic Development Corporation 
recommendation for Façade grants 

No Speakers  

ACTION ITEMS 

9. Discussion and any necessary action regarding Breckenridge Economic Development 
Corporation recommendation for Façade grants 

 EDC Director David Miller addressed commissioners explaining that the BEDC has approved 
reopening façade grants through the remainder of the 2022/2023 fiscal year on a first come, 
first served basis. The available funds are $50,000.00 and will be available to all commercial 
property within the city limits. There are previously approved facades that have tentatively 
been earmarked already for approximately $25,000.00.  

 Commissioner Hamilton moved to approve Breckenridge Economic Development 
Corporations recommendation for façade grants. Commissioner Moore seconded the 
motion. The motion passed 5-0.  

10. Discussion and any necessary action regarding an Interlocal with Stephens County for Street 
Maintenance  

 City Manager Cynthia Northrop explained that the city and the county are partnering 
together for street maintenance projects inside the city limits. The County will provide labor 
and equipment and the city will provide materials. The selection of streets will be based on 
several factors including city streets that are conducive to chip sealing and streets that have 
a bar ditch with no curbs.  

 Mayor Pro Tem Durham moved to approve an interlocal with Stephens County for street 
maintenance. Commissioner Hamilton seconded the motions. The motions passed 5-0.  

11. Discussion and any necessary action regarding an Agreement between Stephens County, 
Breckenridge Economic Development Corporation, and the City of Breckenridge to partner 
on the demolition of Substandard Structures  

 City Manager Cynthia Northrop stated that the county, BEDC, and city are partnering 
together to provide for the demolition of substandard homes the city owns. Stephens County 
crews will demolish the identified homes, haul to the city’s monofil, the Breckenridge Fire 
Department will be on-site to water down and the BEDC will reimburse Stephens County 
$2500.00 per structure demolished.  

 Commissioner Mercer moved to approve an agreement between Stephens County, 
Breckenridge Economic Development Corporation, and the City of Breckenridge to partner 
on the demolition of substandard structures. Commissioner Moore moved to second the 
motion. The motion passed 5-0.  

28

Item 5.



 

 

Regular Meeting of the Breckenridge City Commission May 2, 2023  4 of 5 

12. Discussion and any necessary action regarding Change Order #3 to the AMI Meter 
Replacement project.   

 City Manager Northrop explained that due to continued challenges identifying existing water 
meters, a change order is necessary to update the size and number of new meters required, 
which will increase the contract amount by $21,360.00. This change order will also extend 
the completion time from the original time in days of 240 to 337.  

 Commissioner Mercer moved to approve change order #3 to the AMI Meter Replacement 
Project. Commissioner Hamilton seconded the motion. The motion passed 5-0.  

13. Discussion and any necessary action on award of FM 3099 Utility Relocation Project.  

 City Manager Northrop stated that the Texas Department of Transportation is re-aligning the 
intersection of Highway 180 and FM 3099 to increase safety at the intersection. The City of 
Breckenridge is responsible for covering the costs of the utility relocation. She further 
explained that the project came in over the estimated amount of $300,000 that was included 
in the budget and will necessitate a budget amendment which staff will bring back at a later 
date, and that funds are available. The city engineers developed and published a request for 
proposals. Three proposals were received. Both the engineer, EHT, and the City, 
recommended to award the construction contract to the low bidder, Lee Tech Solutions, of 
$571,775.00 

Commissioner Hamilton moved to award the FM 3099 Utility Relocation project to the low 
bidder and authorize the City Manager to execute the contracts. Mayor Pro Tem Durham 
seconded the motion. The motion passed 5-0.  

14. Discussion and any necessary action regarding Ordinance No. 23-09, an ordinance of the City 
of Breckenridge, Texas, amending Appendix A, “Fee Schedule”, “Sewer Service Charges” of 
the Breckenridge Code of Ordinances to increase the base monthly rate; Providing Repealer 
and Severability Clauses; and Providing and Effective Date. (First Reading) 

 City Manager Northrop explained that this ordinance will codify the  previously approved 
amendment to the fee schedule to increase the sewer charge by $5.00 per user to cover the 
cost of maintenance from an owner’s clean-out to the city main.  

Mayor Pro Tem Durham moved to approve first reading of Ordinance 23-09 an ordinance of 
the City of Breckenridge, Texas, amending Appendix A, “Fee Schedule”, “Sewer Service 
Charges” of the Breckenridge Code of Ordinances to increase the base monthly rate; 
Providing Repealer and Severability Clauses; and Providing and Effective Date. Commissioner 
Moore seconded the motion. The motion passed 5-0 

15. Discussion and any necessary action regarding Ordinance 23-08 amending FY 2022-2023 
official budget adopted by Ordinance 22-14 

 City Manager Northrop advised that budget amendments are presented to revise the current 
year’s approved fiscal budget to reflect changes that occur throughout the year. Most 

29

Item 5.



 

 

Regular Meeting of the Breckenridge City Commission May 2, 2023  5 of 5 

adjustments do not raise the bottom-line budget but are adjusted between line items. The 
insurance claim from the hail damage storm in the Spring of 2022 is a true budget 
amendment, increasing the budget revenue. A list of budget amendments are included in 
Ordinance 23-08. 

Mayor Pro Tem Durham moved to approve Ordinance 23-08 amending the FY 2022-2023 
official budget adopted by Ordinance 22-14. Commissioner Hamilton seconded the motion. 
The motion passed 5-0.  

WORKSHOP ITEMS 
(Workshop items are for discussion only. No action may be taken on items listed under this 
portion of the agenda, other than to provide general direction to staff or to direct staff to 
place such items on a future agenda for action.) 

16. Discussion regarding street plan and a preview of upcoming budget and debt.  

 Cynthia Northrop went over the upcoming street improvement plan and certificates of 
obligation that will be presented at the June 6th commission meeting.  

 No Action Taken.   

RECEIVE REQUESTS FROM COMMISSION MEMBERS/STAFF FOR ITEMS TO BE PLACED ON NEXT 
MEETING AGENDA 
 

ADJOURN 
There being no further business, the Mayor adjourned the regular session at 6:52 p.m. 

 
   
   ___________________________________ 
   Bob Sims, Mayor  
 
____________________________________ 
 Jessica Sutter, City Secretary  

 

 

30

Item 5.



 

BRECKENRIDGE CITY COMMISSION 
AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 

 

Subject: Consider approval of the May 16, 2023 Special Commission Meeting 
minutes as recorded. 

Department: Administration 

Staff Contact: Jessica Sutter  

Title: City Secretary  

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
Meeting minutes for the Special  Commission meeting May 16, 2023.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
If applicable, enter financial impact. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Move to approve as presented .  
 
 
 

31

Item 6.



 

Special Meeting of the Breckenridge City Commission May 16, 2023 Page 1 of 2 

May 16, 2023  
 
SPECIAL CITY COMMISSION MEETING OF THE CITY OF BRECKENRIDGE, TEXAS, HELD ON 5.16.2023 
WITH THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS PRESENT: 
 
 
MAYOR BOB SIMS 
COMMISSIONER PLACE 1  
MAYOR PRO TEM PLACE 2   
COMMISSIONER PLACE 3 VINCE MOORE   
COMMISSIONER PLACE 4  
 
CITY MANAGER CYNTHIA NORTHROP 
CITY SECRETARY JESSICA SUTTER 
FINANCE DIRECTOR      DIANE LATHAM 
  
ABSENT 
COMMISSIONER PLACE 1 BLAKE HAMILTON 
MAYOR PRO TEM PLACE 2 ROB DURHAM 
COMMISSIONER PLACE 4 GARY MERCER 
 
CALL MEETING TO ORDER  
Mayor Sims called the special meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
OPEN FORUM 
This is an opportunity for the public to address the City Commission on any matter of public business, 
except public hearings.  
 
No speakers. 
 

ACTION ITEMS 

1. Discussion and any necessary action regarding Ordinance No. 23-10, Canvassing the Returns 
of a Special Election Held on May 6, 2023, for the Legalization of the Sale of all Alcoholic 
Beverages Including Mixed Beverages within the City; Declaring the Result of such Election; 
and Authorizing the Mayor and City Secretary to Certify the Results of Such Election. 
 
City Secretary Jessica Sutter addressed Commissioners stating that on May 6, 2023, the City 
of Breckenridge held a Special Election for the legalization of the sale of all alcoholic 
beverages including mixed beverages within the city. The results of this election were 238 
votes for; of which 154 were made during early election and 84 on Election Day. There were 
22 votes against; of which 14 were made during early election and 8 on Election Day.  
 
Commissioner Moore moved to approve Ordinance 23-10, Canvassing the returns of the 
Special Election Held on May 6, 2023, for the Legalization of the Sale of all Alcoholic 

32

Item 6.



 

Special Meeting of the Breckenridge City Commission May 16, 2023 Page 2 of 2 

Beverages Including Mixed Beverages within the City; Declaring the Result of such Election; 
and Authorizing the Mayor and City Secretary to Certify the Results of Such Election. Mayor 
Sims Seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  
 

2. Discussion and any necessary action regarding approving Resolution 23-12 canvassing 
returns of the city election for City Commissioner Places 3 and 4, held on May 6, 2023. 
 
City Secretary Jessica Sutter explained that on May 6, 2023, the City of Breckenridge held a 
general election for commissioner Places 3 and 4. Commissioner Vince Moore ran 
unopposed and received 213 total votes of which 142 were made during early election and 
71 on Election Day.  Gary Mercer and Scott Ensey were both on the ballot for 
Commissioner Place 4. The final talyl of these votes was 118 for Gary Mercer; of which 80 
were made during early election and 38 on election day. Scott Ensey received a total of 111 
votes; of which 66 were made during early election and 45 on Election Day. The results of 
this election were in favor of Gary Mercer for Commissioner Place 4.  
 
Commissioner Moore made a motion to approve Resolution 23-12 canvassing returns of 
the city election for the City Commissioner Places 3 and 4, held on May 6, 2023. Mayor 
Sims seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  
 

ADJOURN 
There being no further business, Mayor Sims adjourned the special session at 5:34 p.m. 

 
 
   
   ___________________________________ 
   Bob Sims, Mayor 
 
 
____________________________________ 
 Jessica Sutter, City Secretary 

 

33

Item 6.



 

BRECKENRIDGE CITY COMMISSION 
AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 

 

Subject: Consider approval of the  Chamber of Commerce Quarterly Report 

Department: Administration 

Staff Contact: Cynthia Northrop 

Title: City Manager 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
Chamber of Commerce Executive Director will present the annual Chamber of Commerce 
quarterly report.  
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
NA  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Chamber of Commerce quarterly report.  
 
 
 
 

34

Item 7.



 

BRECKENRIDGE CITY COMMISSION 
AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 

 

Subject: Public Hearing regarding whether the buildings on the following 
properties are dangerous buildings pursuant to Chapter 5, Article 1 of 
the Breckenridge Code of Ordinances  

Department: Administration 

Staff Contact: Cynthia Northrop 

Title: City Manager 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 

1. 115 S. Parks 
2. 907 N. Shelton 
3. 513 S. Stoker 
4. 919 N. Breckenridge Ave. 
5. 110 W 3rd 
6. 109 W. 7th 
7. 1303 W 1st 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Accept comments from applicable parties 
 

35

Item 8.



36

Item 9.



37

Item 9.



38

Item 9.



39

Item 9.



40

Item 9.



 

BRECKENRIDGE CITY COMMISSION 
AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 

 

Subject: Discussion and any necessary action regarding whether the buildings on 
the seven properties are dangerous buildings pursuant to Chapter 5, 
Article I of the Breckenridge Code of Ordinances and, if so, discussion 
and any necessary action regarding issuing orders to abate the 
dangerous buildings or accepting conveyance of property (ies) from 
owners  

Department: Administration 

Staff Contact: Cynthia Northrop 

Title: City Manager 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
The City of Breckenridge has been taking a pro-active approach in addressing substandard 
housing. With the change in leadership over the last few years, this is an issue that has not been 
addressed proactively. With leadership in place and in alignment with the Strategic Plan, we are 
again proactively pursuing compliance. City staff has made an initial determination that the 
following list of buildings are dangerous buildings and the property owners have been notified 
that the buildings must be repaired or demolished to come into compliance with the City’s 
minimum standards contained in Section 5-5 of the City Code.  
1. 115 S. Parks – Deemed Substandard (no response from owner) 
2. 907 N Shelton – Deemed Substandard (willing to sign over the property to city) 
3. 513 S. Stoker – Deemed Substandard (no response from owner) 
4. 919 N. Breckenridge Ave. – Deemed Substandard (Dangerous – 1st priority to demolish; 

willing to sign over property to city) 
5. 110 W 3rd - Deemed Substandard (in the flood zone and doesn’t meet federal/state 

mandates for repair (50% rule), though property owners are willing to  remodel).  
6. 109 W 7th – Deemed Substandard (willing to sign over to city) 
7. 1303 W 1st – Deemed Substandard (vacant mobile home had fire; may be repaired but 

owners not always in town. Received initial notice from city in March 2023) 
 
The property owners have not brought the buildings into compliance (see above for notes 
regarding responses from property owners, if received and staff comments regarding issues 
specific to certain properties).  The next step is for the City Commission to act on declaring the 

41

Item 9.



buildings to be dangerous buildings and to issue orders that the structures be repaired or 
demolished.  In the cases where the property owner is willing to give the property to the City, 
the Commission would need to accept that conveyance and authorize the City Manager to sign 
a Release and Conveyance Agreement with the property owners. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
If property is deeded to City, the cost is city crews demolishing and hauling to Monofil (we can 
only use Monofil for disposal for city-owned property). 

If a building is declared to be a dangerous building and the owner does not repair or vacate 
within a certain time as ordered by the Commission, the City could go in and demolish the 
structures.  In that case, the City could either contract the demolition out and pay disposal costs 
(total estimated cost $20K) or city crews could demolish (estimated cost of disposal is $10K). In 
both cases, City would place a lien on the property to recover costs of demolition/disposal.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
1. 115 S. Parks: Declare a dangerous building and order that the owner demolish the building 

within 30 days. 
2. 907 N Shelton: Accept voluntary conveyance of the property from the owner and authorize 

the City Manager to execute a Release and Conveyance Agreement. 
3. 513 S. Stoker: Declare the building a dangerous building and order that the owner demolish 

the building within 30 days. 
4. 919 N. Breckenridge Ave: Accept voluntary conveyance of the property from the owner and 

authorize the City Manager to execute a Release and Conveyance Agreement. 
5. 110 W 3rd: Declare the building a dangerous building and order that the building be 

demolished within 30 days. 
6. 109 W 7th: Accept voluntary conveyance of the property from the owner and authorize the 

City manager to execute a Release and Conveyance Agreement. 
7. 1303 W 1st: Declare the building a dangerous building and order that the building be 

repaired within a certain time or order that the building be demolished within 30 days. (If 
the Commission orders that the building be repaired within a certain amount of time, then 
the Commission should also order that the building be demolished if the repairs are not 
completed within the required amount of time).  

 
 

42

Item 9.



43

Item 9.



44

Item 9.



45

Item 9.



46

Item 9.



47

Item 9.



48

Item 9.



49

Item 9.



50

Item 9.



51

Item 9.



52

Item 9.



53

Item 9.



54

Item 9.



55

Item 9.



56

Item 9.



57

Item 9.



58

Item 9.



59

Item 9.



60

Item 9.



61

Item 9.



62

Item 9.



63

Item 9.



64

Item 9.



65

Item 9.



66

Item 9.



67

Item 9.



68

Item 9.



69

Item 9.



70

Item 9.



71

Item 9.



72

Item 9.



73

Item 9.



74

Item 9.



75

Item 9.



76

Item 9.



77

Item 9.



78

Item 9.



79

Item 9.



80

Item 9.



81

Item 9.



82

Item 9.



83

Item 9.



84

Item 9.



85

Item 9.



86

Item 9.



87

Item 9.



88

Item 9.



89

Item 9.



90

Item 9.



91

Item 9.



92

Item 9.



 

BRECKENRIDGE CITY COMMISSION 
AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 

 

Subject: Discussion and any necessary action regarding allowing a Mobile Food 
Unit to conduct business on City Property. 

Department: Administration 

Staff Contact: Cynthia Northrop  

Title: City Manager  

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
Staff has received a request from Mr. Benito Escobedo, owner of El Patio De Luna, to set up his 
mobile food unit at the City soccer fields during the upcoming 2023 soccer season. The games 
will take place on Saturdays.  
 
Our current ordinance (Article IV, Section 13-76, C, 2, a; see below) requires Commission 
approval.  

C. Location of mobile food unit. 
(1) Mobile food units may be parked on private property, with the 
written permission of the property owner. 
(2) Mobile food units may not park on any public street, alley or traffic 
island, unless:  

a. The mobile food unit is participating in a special event approved 
by the City Commission; or 
b. The mobile food unit is an ice cream vehicle or snow cone truck 
remaining in one location on a public street or on public facilities 
for less than fifteen (15) minutes. 

 
Mr. Escobedo currently has a mobile food unit permit and is in good standing.  
 
This is an issue that has been coming up with the development of the downtown area as well. 
The Commission may want to consider directing staff to review options to provide more 
flexibility for all mobile food vendors, if this is something they are interested in exploring. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 

93

Item 10.



STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider Mr. Escobedo’s request to set up his mobile food unit and conduct business on City 
Soccer fields on Saturdays during the 2023 Soccer season.  
 
 

94

Item 10.



 

BRECKENRIDGE CITY COMMISSION 
AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 

 

Subject: Discussion and any necessary action regarding adoption of Final 
Strategic Plan; including Vision, Mission, Core Values, Goals and 
Objectives.  

Department: Administration 

Staff Contact: Cynthia Northrop 

Title: City Manager 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
The City of Breckenridge began a strategic planning initiative last Fall which included:  

 Staff sessions developing Vision, Mission, and Core Values draft.  

 City Commission and Community Members meeting to finalize. 

 Community Strategic Planning session and survey to gain citizen/resident input. 

 City Commission and Community members reviewing information and developing broad 
goals. 

 Staff drafting objectives based on City Commission, Community Leaders, and 
citizen/resident feedback. 
 

The task remaining for the City Commission is to finalize the objectives and approve the 
Strategic Plan.  
 
The Strategic Plan will guide staff in daily operations and will inform the budget process going 
forward. The plan will be to review progress and priorities on an annual basis to ensure we stay 
on track.  
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
NA 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve final Strategic Plan 
 

95

Item 11.



5.11.2023 Draft Objectives to Council 6.6.2023l 

STRATEGIC PLANNING – FINAL VMC and GOALS 
Draft Objectives May 2023 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Goals 
 
GOAL ONE: INVEST IN INFRASTRUCTURE 
 

Objective 1 - Develop and implement Street Plan 
 
Objective 2 – Maintain and Improve Water/Wastewater System 

 TWDB projects 

 Identification of facilities 

 Continue to pursue grant funding  
 
Objective 3 - Continue to invest and diversify Park Recreation 

 Replace/update playground equipment 

 Explore feasibility of splash pad 

 Identify low-cost activity items using existing resources 
 Pickle ball 
 Sand Volleyball Court 
 Dog Park 

VISION STATEMENT: 

“The Community of Breckenridge 

aims to be an appealing, family-

centered environment inviting 

growth, investment, and tourism.” 

 

 

MISSION STATEMENT 

“Consistently plan for higher quality 

of life through positive community 

relationships that value citizens, 

welcomes visitors, and invites 

business growth focusing on 

innovation, education, and safety.” 

CORE VALUES 

B – Bold 

R – Responsible 

E – Excellent 

C – Compassionate 

K - Knowledgeable 

 

 

96

Item 11.



5.11.2023 Draft Objectives to Council 6.6.2023l 

 
GOAL TWO: INVEST IN EMPLOYEES 
 

Objective 1 – Continue to increase employee pay to match current market pay 
 
Objective 2 – Develop phased in approach for Certification Pay 
 
Objective 3 – Develop Professional Development Plans and required training  
 
Objective 4 – Develop a positive organizational culture with employee involvement 
 
Objective 5 – Update/maintain city facilities, promoting safe work environment 

 
GOAL THREE: INVEST IN BEAUTIFYING BRECKENRIDGE 
 

Objective 1 - Increase Code Enforcement 

 Substandard housing 

 High grass & weeds 

 Enforcement of blowing grass clippings in street 

 Junk vehicles 
 
Objective 2 - Evaluate partnering and re-establishing Beautify Breckenridge 
 
Objective 3 - Street Department to address grass growing in streets 
 
Objective 4 - Explore partnership with County, TX Ag Ext, Master Gardener program, 4-H 

 
 
GOAL FOUR: PROMOTE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, TOURISM, AND 
BRECKENRIDGE AS A DESTINATION! 
 

Objective 1 - Evaluate efficacy of Main Street Program (coordinating with BDDC) 
 
Objective 2 - Improve and market Lake Daniels as a destination 
 
Objective 3 - Selected city events (coordinate with Chamber, EDC & other community groups) 

 Chalk walk 

 Food Truck Friday 

 Movies in the park 

 Shop Local (coordinate with Chamber, EDC and cross-promote on website) 

 
 
 

97

Item 11.



5.11.2023 Draft Objectives to Council 6.6.2023l 

GOAL FIVE: PROMOTE TRANSPARENCY AND COMMUNICATION 
 

Objective 1 - Development of Communication Plan 

 Website & Social Media 

 Update website platform 

 Increase Social Media presence 

 Increase use of YouTube platform  
 
Objective 2 - Updated and efficient records management 
 
Objective 3 - Inform and involve residents and community members 

 High School – student representative on City Commission 

 Surveys 

 Newsletter 

 Digital communication tools 

 City employee involvement in various community events and civic organizations 

98

Item 11.



 

BRECKENRIDGE CITY COMMISSION 
AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 

 

Subject: Discussion and any necessary action regarding Resolution 2023 –14 
Directing Publication of Notice of Intention to issue Combination Tax 
and Revenue Certificates of Obligation of the City of Breckenridge; and 
resolving other matters related to the subject 

Department: Administration 

Staff Contact: Cynthia Northrop 

Title: City Manager 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
City Commissioner’s began preparing for this issuance during the FY 2022-2023 Budget process; 
determining to move current debt related to the Water/Wastewater Fund and free up capacity 
on the General Fund to support additional debt for needed capital improvement projects, most 
notably streets but also including parks and facilities.  
 
The publication and posting of the Notice of Intention to issue Certificates of Obligation is the 
first step and does not commit the City to issue the debt. It does set a ‘not to exceed’ amount 
of $9.1 million which is essentially a best-case scenario. This provides flexibility as the actual 
debt issuance amount will be dependent upon the certified appraised values (ETA July 25) and 
what the actual interest rate is when the City considers bids from potential purchasers of the 
Certificates of Obligation (August 2023).    
 
See attached Street Plan and Financing Plan (updated since this information was presented to 
Commissioners in the May 2023 meeting).  
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
See attached. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution (2023 – 14)  
 
 

99

Item 12.



RESOLUTION 2023-14 

 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF INTENTION 

TO ISSUE COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF 

OBLIGATION OF THE CITY OF BRECKENRIDGE; AND RESOLVING 

OTHER MATTERS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT 

WHEREAS, this City Commission deems it advisable to authorize publication of notice 

of intent to issue certificates of obligation for the purposes hereinafter set forth; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Breckenridge (the “City”) expects to pay expenditures in 

connection with the projects described in “Exhibit A” to this Resolution prior to the issuance of 

the certificates of obligation hereinafter described; 

 

WHEREAS, this City Commission hereby finds, considers and declares that the 

reimbursement of the payment by the City of such expenditures will be appropriate and 

consistent with the lawful objectives of the City and, as such, chooses to declare its intention, in 

accordance with the provisions of Section 1.150-2 of the U.S. Treasury Regulations, to 

reimburse itself for such payments at such time as it issues the hereinafter described certificates 

of obligation;  

 

WHEREAS, it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was considered was open to the public, and public notice of the time, place and 

purpose of said meeting was given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 

BRECKENRIDGE, TEXAS: 

Section 1.  Attached hereto and marked “Exhibit A” is a form of notice, the form and 

substance of which are hereby passed and approved. 

Section 2.  The City Secretary shall cause said notice to be published in substantially the 

form attached hereto, in a newspaper, as defined by Subchapter C, Chapter 2051, Texas 

Government Code, of general circulation in the area of said City, once a week for two 

consecutive weeks, with the date of the first publication to be before the 45th day before the date 

tentatively set for the passage of the ordinance authorizing the issuance of the certificates, and, if 

the City maintains an Internet website, continuously on the City’s website for at least 45 days 

before the date tentatively set for the passage of the ordinance authorizing the issuance of the 

certificates. 

Section 3.  All costs to be reimbursed pursuant hereto will be capital expenditures; the 

proposed certificates of obligation shall be issued within 18 months of the later of (i) the date the 

expenditures are paid or (ii) the date on which the property, with respect to which such 

expenditures were made, is placed in service; and the foregoing notwithstanding, the certificates 

of obligation will not be issued pursuant to this Resolution on a date that is more than three years 

after the date any expenditure which is to be reimbursed is paid. 

Section 4.  This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption. 

100

Item 12.



 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 

BRECKENRIDGE, TEXAS, this 6th day of June, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

  

Bob Sims, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 

           [CITY SEAL] 

Jessica Sutter, City Secretary 

 

 

101

Item 12.



EXHIBIT A 

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO ISSUE 

COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE 

CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION 

OF THE CITY OF BRECKENRIDGE 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Commission of the City of Breckenridge, Texas, at 

its meeting to commence at 5:30 P.M. on August 1, 2023, at the City Offices, Commission 

Chambers, 105 North Rose Avenue, Breckenridge, Texas, tentatively proposes to adopt an 

ordinance authorizing the issuance of interest bearing certificates of obligation, in one or more 

series, in an amount not to exceed $9,100,000 for paying all or a portion of the City's contractual 

obligations incurred in connection with (i) constructing and improving streets, roads, alleys, 

bridges and sidewalks including related utility relocation, drainage, landscaping, lighting and 

signage; (ii) acquiring, constructing, renovating, improving, installing and equipping park and 

recreational improvements; (iii) acquiring, constructing, renovating, improving and equipping 

existing municipal buildings including for the City’s public works department; and (iv) legal, 

fiscal and engineering fees in connection with such projects. The maximum interest rate for the 

certificates may not exceed the maximum legal interest rate. The maximum maturity date for the 

certificates is September 15, 2044. The estimated combined principal and interest required to pay 

the certificates to be authorized on time and in full is $12,115,733. The current principal of all 

outstanding debt obligations of the City is $13,816,000. The current combined principal and 

interest required to pay all outstanding debt obligations of the City on time and in full is 

$19,374,795. The City proposes to provide for the payment of such certificates of obligation 

from the levy and collection of ad valorem taxes in the City as provided by law and from a 

pledge of surplus revenues of the City's waterworks and sewer system, remaining after payment 

of all operation and maintenance expenses thereof, and all debt service, reserve, and other 

requirements in connection with all of the City's revenue bonds or other obligations (now or 

hereafter outstanding), which are payable from all or any part of the net revenues of the City's 

waterworks and sewer system. The certificates of obligation are to be issued, and this notice is 

given, under and pursuant to the provisions of V.T.C.A., Local Government Code, Subchapter C 

of Chapter 271. 

 

CITY OF BRECKENRIDGE, TEXAS 

102

Item 12.



CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS     § 

COUNTY OF STEPHENS     § 

CITY OF BRECKENRIDGE     § 

 

 I, the undersigned secretary of said City, hereby certify as follows: 

 

 1. The City Commission of said City convened in REGULAR MEETING ON THE 6TH DAY OF 

JUNE, 2023, at the designated meeting place, and the roll was called of the duly constituted officers and 

members of said City Commission, to wit: 

Bob Sims, Mayor 

Blake Hamilton, Commissioner Place 1 

Rob Durham, Mayor Pro-Tem, Commissioner Place 2 

Vince Moore, Commissioner Place 3 

Gary Mercer, Commissioner Place 4 
 

and all of said persons were present, except ____________________, thus constituting a quorum. 

Whereupon, among other business, the following was transacted at said Meeting: a written 

 
RESOLUTION DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF INTENTION TO 

ISSUE COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION 

OF THE CITY OF BRECKENRIDGE; AND RESOLVING OTHER MATTERS 

RELATING TO THE SUBJECT 

 

was duly introduced for the consideration of said City Commission. It was then duly moved and seconded 

that said Resolution be adopted and, after due discussion, said motion, carrying with it the adoption of said 

Resolution, prevailed and carried by the following vote: 

 

 AYES:  All members of the City Commission shown present above voted "Aye," except as 

shown below: 

 

 NOES:      

 

 ABSTAIN:     

 

 2. That a true, full and correct copy of the aforesaid Resolution adopted at the Meeting described 

in the above and foregoing paragraph is attached to and follows this Certificate; that said Resolution has 

been duly recorded in said City Commission’s minutes of said Meeting; that the above and foregoing 

paragraph is a true, full and correct excerpt from said City Commission’s minutes of said Meeting pertaining 

to the adoption of said Resolution; that the persons named in the above and foregoing paragraph are the 

duly chosen, qualified and acting officers and members of said City Commission as indicated therein; that 

each of the officers and members of said City Commission was duly and sufficiently notified officially and 

personally, in advance, of the time, place and purpose of the aforesaid Meeting, and that said Resolution 

would be introduced and considered for adoption at said Meeting, and each of said officers and members 

consented, in advance, to the holding of said Meeting for such purpose, and that said Meeting was open to 

the public and public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given, all as required by 

Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. 

  

103

Item 12.



CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF INTENTION TO ISSUE 

COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION OF THE CITY OF 

BRECKENRIDGE; AND RESOLVING OTHER MATTERS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT 

 

 

SIGNED this, the 6th day of June, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

      ______________________________ 

      City Secretary 
[SEAL] 

104

Item 12.



 

City of Breckenridge 
Street Improvement Plan 

April 2023 

 

BACKGROUND 

The City of Breckenridge has 66 miles of city street to maintain. The average cost per mile to improve, without 

being engineered, is approximately $1 million per mile. The challenge with the condition of our city streets has 

been exacerbated by aging water/wastewater infrastructure and lack of resources, both capital and human.   

The city initiated a Strategic Planning effort which included staff, Mayor, City Commissioners, Community 

Leaders and the public. Street improvements were at the top of the list of items that desperately need 

attention.  

The City Commission has taken several actions over the course of the last few months to plan and implement 

an aggressive street improvement plan for the City of Breckenridge.  

This plan lays out a summary of upcoming street improvements in the City of Breckenridge.  

 

SUMMARY OF STREET IMPROVEMENT ACTION ITEMS 

1. Pavement Evaluation Project: Identifying variable factors including road condition, drainage, timing of 

water/wastewater infrastructure improvements (past and future planned improvements via TWDB low interest 

rate loans/loan forgiveness Series 2022 A/B). This will assist in developing priorities and ultimately a CIP list of 

short, mid, long-term street projects (see DRAFT CIP listing below).  

2. Onboarded a general street maintenance contractor to jump start street improvements. 

a. While Street Department has 5 FTE’s, there are currently 2 vacant positions. Even with a full crew, the 

maintenance demands are beyond our in-house capacity to address.  

b. We are identifying several intersection improvements, base failure repair projects and candidates for 

level up and asphalt overlay. 

3. CDBG City of Breckenridge submittal for Street improvements: $500K for selected project (Panther from 

Jeanette to 5th Street and 4th Street from Panther to Parks). This is a 2-yr. cycle grant; two opportunities to be 

selected. 

4. Partnering with Stephens County:   

a. Interlocal for streets – will select streets conducive to chip seal roads (those streets that have a rural 

section (no curb/bar ditches) vs. curbs, i.e., Chaparral subdivision, Ridge Road area, Northglen or Cactus 

Cove, etc.)  

b. Interlocal for a CDBG – If County is awarded the $500K grant they are planning on improving:  

i. 3rd Street, north of the High School from Parks to Rose  

ii. Hartford, by the Hospital, from Elliott to 180/Walker. 

c. Partnership Agreement with Stephens County, BEDC and City to demolish homes declared substandard. 

5. Planning for debt issuance for General Fund FY 2023-2024 to fund street improvements (see below debt 

issuance details) 

6. Development of a short, mid and long-term Capital Improvement Plan: based on all aforementioned 

 

105

Item 12.



 
 

SHORT TERM (1-2 YEARS) MID-TERM (2 – 5 YEARS) LONG-TERM (5- 10 YEARS) 

Pavement Maintenance: North 
Rose Ave (pavement overlay) 

CO’s – S. Harvey (Walker to Elliott) W 2nd (Pecan to Westridge) 

Intersections & Various locations – 
Pothole, base failure repair and 
Overlay 

CO’s – Hullum (Harvey to Breck Ave) 1st (Rose to Miller) 

If Funded – CDBG Grant N. Panther 
& W. 4th 

CO’s - W. Elm Street (Wilson to Rose) McAmis (Walker to 1st) 

If Funded – CDBG Grant with 
County 

CO’s - E. Gaddis Street (Robert to Flint) W. Williams (Wilson to Parks) 

W. 7th from Parks to Breck Ave CO’s - E. Elm Street (Butte to Jackson)  

Elliott (Harvey to Breck) CO’s – E. Dyer Street (Butte to 
Jackson) 
 

 

 CO’s – Shelton (Jeannette to 4th)  

 CO’s - N. Butte to Walker to Dyer  

 CO’s – E. Wheeler (Jackson to Butte)  

 CO’s – N. Oakwood (Jeannette to 5th)  

 CO’s – N. Flint (Walker to Connell)  

 CO’s – N. Payne (2nd to 7th)  

 CO’s – N. Harvey (Jeanette to 6th)  

 CO’s – S. Pecan (Williams to Elliot)  

 CO’s – S. Stoker (Gaddis to Power) 
 

 

 CO’s – W. 3rd (Pecan to Circle Heights)  

 CO’s – S. Harding (Walker to Elliot)  

 CO’s – W. 4th (Breck Ave to Parks)  

 CO’s – S. Harvey (Walker to Elliott)  
* Draft Listing is Subject to change based on various factors, i.e., pavement evaluation, timing of TWDB W/L improvements and 

market conditions affecting project pricing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Upcoming Certificate of Obligation Debt Issuance 

106

Item 12.



 

 

1. Water/Wastewater Fund - Conducted a Water/Wastewater Rate Study to identify needed improvements, 

associated financial impact and developed 5-yr rate increase schedule to accommodate operations, maintenance 

and current debt service payments associated with W/WW projects.  

2. Previous City Commission direction - Structured debt service transfer from General Fund to W/WW and 

identified capacity to make additional debt service payment in FY 2022-2023 in the amount of $1,469,000. 

3. Previous City Commission direction - With existing W/WW debt moving to W/WW Fund in 2023-2024, debt 

capacity is freed up on the General Fund side to accommodate need improvements including streets, facilities, 

parks.  

a. In alignment with outcome of Strategic Planning the following were identified as priorities:  

i. Invest in infrastructure – Streets (draft projects identified above) 

ii. Invest in infrastructure – Parks (replacement/upgrade of playground equipment) 

iii. Invest in Employees – Facility (improvements in Public Works bottom/top shop) 

4. These improvements are in alignment with the Strategic Planning goals identified over the last 6 months.  

5. Staff have been working with our financial advisors and bond counsel to identify the timing of issuing the 

Certificates of Obligation. A Notice of Intent and further details on action items planned for the June meeting will 

be provided over the coming weeks. See attached draft information based on 20- year debt issuance and 

estimated available funding (the actual final funding amount would be dependent upon current market 

conditions at time of sale).  

6. See attached Calendar for issuing Notice of Intent June 6, 2023. This  will allow for Certified Values to be in hand 

prior to pricing, which will help ensure we are able to target the desired amount of debt service and tax rate for 

FY 2023-2024. 

 

107

Item 12.



 

BRECKENRIDGE CITY COMMISSION 
AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 

 

Subject: Discussion and any necessary action regarding Ordinance No. 23-09, an 
ordinance of the City of Breckenridge, Texas, amending Appendix A, 
“Fee Schedule”, “Sewer Service Charges” of the Breckenridge Code of 
Ordinances to increase the base monthly rate; Providing Repealer and 
Severability Clauses; and Providing and Effective Date. (Second Reading) 

Department: Administration 

Staff Contact: Cynthia Northrop 

Title: City Manager 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
This ordinance will codify the Commissioner’s previous action to increase the sewer charge by 
$5.00 per user to cover the cost of maintenance from an owner’s clean-out to the city main.  
 
Previously, the Commissioner’s clarified City’s responsibility is for the sewer collection main, 
and the owner’s responsibility is their service line to the sewer main during their March 28, 
2023 meeting, approving Ordinance 23-07. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
Increasing the base monthly sewer rate $5.00. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Second Reading of  Ordinance 23-09 as presented. 
 
 
 

108

Item 13.



 

ORDINANCE NO.  23-09 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BRECKENRIDGE, TEXAS 
AMENDING APPENDIX A, “FEE SCHEDULE”, SECTION X(L), 
“SEWER SERVICE CHARGES”, OF THE BRECKENRIDGE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES TO INCREASE THE BASE MONTHLY RATE; 
PROVIDING REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

  
WHEREAS, the City of Breckenridge, Texas (the “City”) is a home-rule city operating 

pursuant to its Charter adopted by the electorate pursuant to Article XI, Section 5 of the Texas 
Constitution;   

 
WHEREAS, the City operates a waste water system and “may regulate the system in a manner 

that protects the interests of the” City pursuant to Section 552.001(b) of the Texas Local Government 
Code;  

 
WHEREAS, the City’s waste water system is in constant and dire need of repairs due to its 

age and past City policy and practices has put much of the burden for said repairs on the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City wishes to increase the base rate for sewer 

services by five dollars ($5.00) so the City may recover for past and future repairs of the waste water 
system. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF BRECKENRIDGE, TEXAS THAT: 
 
I. Amendment to Appendix A.  Section X(L), “Sewer Service Charges”, of Appendix A, “Fee 
Schedule”, of the Breckenridge Code of Ordinances is hereby amended as follows.  All other 
provisions of Appendix A not specifically amended by this Ordinance remain in full force and effect. 
 
(L) Sewer Service Charges (Sec. 21-44): 
 

 Inside City Limits Outside City Limits 
 

(1) Residential Single Family: 
 

First 5,000 gallons (minimum): 
 

$45.00 $50.00 $71.25 $76.25 

Over 5,000 gallons, per thousand: 
 

$4.50 $7.10 

Maximum monthly charge: 
 

$93.75 $98.75 $140.60 $145.60 

(2) All other use: 
 

First 5,000 gallons (minimum):  
 

$49.50 $54.50 $78.40 $83.40 

109

Item 13.



 

Over 5,000 gallons, per thousand:  
 

$6.00 $9.50 

Maximum monthly charge: 
 

$500.00 $505.00 $750.00 $755.00 

(3) *Sewer Irrigation Credit: 
 

Residential Single Family: 
 

$30.00 $60.00 

All other use: 
 

$105.00 $210.00 

(4) Texas Department of Criminal Justice – Walker Sayle Unit: 
 

Per thousand gallons of water, or portion thereof, used monthly: 
 

$5.05 

(5) If a customer installs a separate irrigation meter to provide for the separate metering of 
irrigation water they may request to be charged for water use only and not to be charged for 
sewer services. 
 

  
II. Repeal.  Any prior ordinances or ordinance provisions are hereby repealed to the extent they 
are in conflict with the terms of this Ordinance.  Any remaining provisions of said ordinances shall 
remain in full force and effect. 
 
III. Severability.  Should any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance be 
declared unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, it is expressly provided that 
any and all remaining portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.  Breckenridge 
hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, clause, or 
phrase thereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, clauses, or phrases 
be declared unconstitutional or invalid. 
 
IV. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption on 
second reading as required by Section 4-19 of the City Charter.  The rates adopted herein shall go into 
effect on June 10, 2023.  
 
PASSED and APPROVED on first reading on this the 2nd day of May 2023.  
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED on second and final reading this the 6th day of June 2023.  
 
 
 

______________________________ 
ATTEST:       Bob Sims, Mayor 
 
 
 
________________________ 
Jessica Sutter, City Secretary      S E A L  

110

Item 13.



 

BRECKENRIDGE CITY COMMISSION 
AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 

 

Subject: Discussion and any necessary action regarding Resolution 2023-13 
appointing a commissioner to serve as Mayor Pro-Tem 

Department: Admin 

Staff Contact: Jessica Sutter 

Title: City Secretary  

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
In accordance with Section 1.08(g) of the Texas Municipal Law, At the first meeting of 
each new City Commission, one of the commission members shall be elected president 
pro-tempore (i.e., mayor pro-tem) who shall hold this office for one year. In the case of 
the failure, inability, or refusal of the Mayor to act, the mayor pro-tem shall perform the 
duties of the Mayor. If both the Mayor pro-tem and the Mayor are absent, any 
commission member may be appointed to preside at the meeting. (Tex. Loc. Gov't Code 
§22.037.) When serving as the presiding officer at a meeting in the Mayor's absence, 
the mayor pro-tem or the commission member acting in the Mayor's place shall retain 
their right to vote on matters before the commission without regard to a tie. 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
n/a 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Move to approve Resolution 2023-13 appointing _____________________to serve as Mayor 
Pro-Tem.  
 
 
 

111

Item 14.



CITY OF BRECKENRIDGE, TEXAS  

RESOLUTION  2023-13 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 

BRECKENRIDGE, TEXAS APPOINTING COMMISIONER 

_______________________ TO SERVE AS MAYOR PRO TEM; 

PROVIDING FOR THE INCORPORATION OF PREMISES; AND 

PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 
 
WHEREAS,  in accordance with Section 4.11 of the City Charter of the City of Breckenridge, 

the Commission shall elect a Mayor Pro Tem; and 

 

WHEREAS,  the City Commission wishes to appoint a Commission Member to serve as Mayor 

Pro Tem. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 

TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE, TEXAS: 

 

 

Section 1. That the above findings are true and correct.  

 

Section 2. That Commission Member _______________________ is hereby appointed by the 

City Commission to serve as Mayor Pro Tem.   

 

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and 

approval. 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 6th of June 2023. 

 

 

      CITY OF BRECKENRIDGE 
 

 

__________________________________ 

ATTEST:     Bob Sims, Mayor 

       

 

____________________________________  

Jessica Sutter, City Secretary 

 

112

Item 14.


	Top
	Item 1.	Swearing in
	2023.06.06 commissioner Swearing in Staff Memo

	Item 2.	City Business
	DH Monthly Report April 2023

	Item 4.	chamber report
	Chamber profit and loss report Jan-March 2023

	Item 5.	minutes 5.2
	Staff Memo- Minutes 05.02.2023
	2023.05.02 minutes Draft

	Item 6.	minutes 5.16
	Staff Memo- Minutes 05.16.2023
	2023.05.16 Special Meeting Minutes Draft

	Item 7.	chamber quarterly report
	Staff commentary - Quarterly Chamber Report

	Item 8.	PH-Substandard
	PH-Staff Memo - Determine Substandard homes 2

	Item 9.	substandard homes Action Item
	Outline for CC
	Staff Memo - Determine Substandard homes final
	June SS houses

	Item 10.	MOBILE FOOD UNIT
	Staff Memo - Food Truck at Soccer Fields

	Item 11.	Strategic Plan
	Staff Memo - Final Strategic Plan
	STRATEGIC PLANNING VMC and GOALS & OBJ 5.11.2023

	Item 12.	Cert of Oblig-Notice of Intent
	Staff Memo - CO Resolution
	R 2023-14 Directing Publication of Notice of Intention Final
	Certificate for CO Resolution June 2023
	Street Plan 2023 6.6.2023

	Item 13.	fee schedule-2nd reading
	Staff Memo Schedule of Fee Update -Sewer
	O 23-09 Fee Schedule EMH 04-25-23

	Item 14.	Mayor Pro-Tem
	23.06.06 Mayor Pro tem Staff Memo
	R 2023-13- Mayor Pro Tem Appointment

	Bottom

